
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

  Budget and Administration Committee 
Tuesday, July 2, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park 

 

Agenda 
 

Members:  Chair Director Monique Scobey (MS), Vice Chair Eric Aiston (EA),  
and Alternate Director Holly Morrison (HM)  

Staff:  Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
and Vicky Neibauer, Finance/Human Resources Officer 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL   
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA  
 
OPEN FORUM 
 

At this time, members of the Committee or public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls 
within the jurisdiction of this Committee; however, no action may be taken unless the Committee 
agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 

Principal party on each side of an issue (where applicable) is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual 
comments are limited to four minutes and individuals representing a group allocated five minutes.  
Individuals shall be allowed to speak to an item only once.  The Committee reserves the right to waive 
said rules by a majority vote.   

 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called.  Principal party on each side of 
an issue (where applicable) is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to four 
minutes and individuals representing a group allocated five minutes.  Individuals shall be allowed to 
speak to an item only once.  The Committee reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

 
 
1. Review and Discuss Fiscal Year 2016-17 and 2017-18 Audits, Final Drafts (V. Neibauer) 

 
2. Review and Discuss Cameron Park Community Services District Park Impact Fee Nexus Study (Update)     
 (J. Ritzman) 

 



 

Budget and Administration Committee Agenda Page 2 of 2 
 July 2, 2019 
 
 

3. Fiscal Year 2018-19 Annual Employee & Board Member Reimbursement Report (V. Neibauer) 

 
4. Staff Updates (V. Neibauer) 

• Check Register for May 31st through June 26th 
• Staff Tasks for Final Budget 

  
3. Items for July & Future Committee Meetings 

 
4. Items to take to the Board of Directors  

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS & STAFF      

 
ADJOURNMENT  

 

• Please Note: Staff expects to update the agenda packet with the 2018-18 Audit on Monday. 

 

 

 

 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

  Budget and Administration Committee 
Tuesday, June 4, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park 

 

Conformed Agenda 
 

Members:  Chair Director Monique Scobey (MS), Vice Chair (vacant),  
and Alternate Director Holly Morrison (HM)  

Staff:  Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
and Vicky Neibauer, Finance/Human Resources Officer 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 7:03pm 
 
ROLL CALL – MS/HM (as alternate)  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA – Approved with the following revisions; move Item #1 after Item #2 and Item #3. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA - Approved 
 
OPEN FORUM 
 

At this time, members of the Committee or public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls 
within the jurisdiction of this Committee; however, no action may be taken unless the Committee 
agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 

Principal party on each side of an issue (where applicable) is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual 
comments are limited to four minutes and individuals representing a group allocated five minutes.  
Individuals shall be allowed to speak to an item only once.  The Committee reserves the right to waive 
said rules by a majority vote.   

 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called.  Principal party on each side of 
an issue (where applicable) is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to four 
minutes and individuals representing a group allocated five minutes.  Individuals shall be allowed to 
speak to an item only once.  The Committee reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

 
 
1. 3rd Draft FY 2019/20 Preliminary Budget (J. Ritzman, V. Neibauer) 

- Move to the Board without support 
 
2. Grant Writer Information – Grant Opportunities for the District (J. Ritzman) 

- Move to the Board without support 



 

Budget and Administration Committee Conformed Agenda Page 2 of 2 
 June 4, 2019 
 
 

3. SDRMA Elections (J. Ritzman) 

- Move to the Board without recommendation 
 
4. El Dorado Disposal/Waste Connections Performance Reports (informational) 

 
5. Staff Updates (V. Neibauer) 

• Check Register for Month of May 
  
6. Items for July & Future Committee Meetings 

• Proposed Legislation – ACA 1 (J. Ritzman) 
 

7. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

- FY 2019-20 Preliminary Budget 

- Grant Writer Information 

- SDRMA Election 
 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS & STAFF      

 
ADJOURNMENT – 10:15pm 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1A



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1B



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1C



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



Item #1D



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  July 2, 2019 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
    
AGENDA ITEM #2: PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY (UPDATED) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   REVIEW AND DISCUSS 
 
Background 
The Cameron Park Community Services District (District) Board of Directors updated its 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan in 2014 and 2015.  Due to the updated Master Plan, the 
Board also updated the District’s Park Impact Fee Nexus Study, which determines fees 
for expanded park services placed new development in Cameron Park.   
 
In November 2015, the District Board of Directors approved Resolution 2015-17 
approving the District’s Park Impact Fee Nexus Study (Study) and Requesting County of 
El Dorado Board of Supervisors Adopt and Implement the Proposed Park Impact Fee 
Nexus Study on Behalf of the District.  Approval of the Study was not scheduled for the 
Board of Supervisors’ consideration. 
 
Discussion 
The Study is prepared pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act.  The Study’s purpose is to 
establish the legal and policy basis for imposing park impact fees on new residential 
developments within the District. 
 
District staff worked with SCI Consulting Group and County staff to review and update 
the 2015 Study.  The updates are complete, therefore, staff is bringing forward for 
approval by the District Board and County Board of Supervisors.  The minor updates 
include:  

• Cost estimates adjusted for inflation; 
• Elimination of the fee for accessory dwelling units; 



Park Impact Fee Nexus Study July 2, 2019 Page 2 of 2 
 

• Single Family Housing Fee rather separate fees for attached and detached units; 
• Updated population projection (Note: The discrepancy in the population projections for 

the park impact fee program and fire impact fee program is largely because the District’s 
fire service boundary is smaller than District’s park and recreation service boundary); 

• Updated County enabling ordinance; 
• Minor language improvements. 

 
The following chart outlines the current and proposed fees.  This proposal is also cited 
on Page 23 of the Study.  Fees have not been updated since 2007. 
 

 Current Fee Proposed Fee $ change % change 
Single Family  $4,984 $6,645 $1,661 33.3% 
Multi Family $3,816 $5,435 $1,619 42.4% 
Mobile Home $2,467 $3,402 $935 37.9% 

 
Conclusion 
With the Budget and Administration Committee’s support, staff will schedule for the 
Board of Director’s consideration in July.  Once approved by the District Board, staff will 
work with the County to schedule for the Board of Supervisors consideration later this 
summer.  
 
Attachment: 
2A – Park Impact Fee Nexus Study (May 2019) 
 



CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY

SERVICES DISTRICT 

PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY 

MAY 2019 
FINAL REPORT 

PREPARED FOR: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

PREPARED BY: 

4745 MANGLES BOULEVARD 
FAIRFIELD, CALIFORNIA  94534 
PHONE  707.430.4300 
FAX  707.430.4319 
www.sci-cg.com

Attachment 2A



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

Attachment 2A



 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page i

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Margaret Mohr, President 
Monique Scobey, Vice President 
Felicity Carlson, Director 
Holly Morrison, Director 
Ellie Wooten, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER 

Jill Ritzman 

FINANCE/HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICER

Vicky Neibauer 

DISTRICT CONSULTANT 

Blair Aas, Director of Planning Services 
   SCI Consulting Group 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page ii

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

This Park Impact Fee Nexus Study was prepared by SCI Consulting Group under contract 
with the Cameron Park Community Services District.  The work was accomplished under 
the general direction of Jill Ritzman, General Manager of the District.   
 
We would like to acknowledge the special efforts made by individuals and organizations to 
this project: 
 

Cameron Park CSD Park and Recreation Committee 
Paul Ryan, Cameron Park Community Services District (former) 
Kate Kirsh, Foothill Associates 
Kelly Webb, County of El Dorado (former) 
Sue Hennike, County of El Dorado 
Michael Ciccozzi, County of El Dorado 
Roger Trout, County of El Dorado 
El Dorado County Assessor’s Office 
El Dorado Area Council of Governments 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page iii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................ 1 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................ 1 
METHODOLOGY / APPROACH ............................................................................................ 2 
SUMMARY OF GENERAL FINDINGS ..................................................................................... 3 
SUMMARY OF GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS ..................................................................... 5 

EXISTING PARK FACILITIES AND LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARDS .............................................. 6 

PER CAPITA COST COMPONENTS ........................................................................................... 8 

PARK DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA ............................................................................ 8 
TRAIL DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA ........................................................................... 9 

PARK IMPACT FEE DETERMINATION ...................................................................................... 10 

PARK IMPACT FEE COST COMPONENTS ........................................................................... 10 
LAND USE CATEGORIES ................................................................................................. 10 
DWELLING UNIT OCCUPANCY FACTOR ............................................................................ 11 
PARK IMPACT FEE DETERMINATION ................................................................................. 12 
PROJECTED PARK IMPACT FEE REVENUE ........................................................................ 13 

NEXUS FINDINGS ................................................................................................................. 14 

FEE PROGRAM ADOPTION REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................ 16 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ........................................................... 16 
COUNTY OF EL DORADO ................................................................................................ 16 

FEE PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION REQUIREMENTS ................................................................... 18 

ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................ 18 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................... 18 
ANNUAL INFLATIONARY ADJUSTMENT .............................................................................. 19 
FEE CREDITS ................................................................................................................ 20 
EXEMPTIONS ................................................................................................................. 20 

APPENDICES ....................................................................................................................... 21 

APPENDIX A – ESTIMATE OF COST FOR PARK DEVELOPMENT............................................ 22 
APPENDIX B – COMPARISON OF CURRENT AND MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE ...................... 23 
APPENDIX C – EL DORADO COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 13.20 ............................................. 24 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page iv

LIST OF FIGURES 

FIGURE 1 – CURRENT PARK IMPACT FEE (2007) ...................................................................... 3 

FIGURE 2 – MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE ................................................................................. 4 

FIGURE 3 – POPULATION PROJECTION ..................................................................................... 6 

FIGURE 4 – PARK DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA ................................................................. 8 

FIGURE 5 – TRAIL DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA ................................................................. 9 

FIGURE 6 – PARK IMPACT FEE COST COMPONENTS ................................................................ 10 

FIGURE 7 – DWELLING UNIT OCCUPANCY FACTOR (CAMERON PARK CDP) .............................. 11 

FIGURE 8 – MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE ............................................................................... 12 

FIGURE 9 – PROJECTED PARK IMPACT FEE REVENUE ............................................................. 13 

FIGURE 10 – SUMMARY OF ALLOWABLE AND PROHIBITED USES OF FEE REVENUE .................... 14 

FIGURE 11 – ESTIMATE OF COST FOR PARK DEVELOPMENT .................................................... 22 

FIGURE 12 – COMPARISON OF CURRENT AND MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE .............................. 23 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

INTRODUCTION 

The County of El Dorado (“County”), on behalf of the Cameron Park Community Services 
District (“District”) imposes a park impact fee on new residential development within the 
service area of the District. The purpose of the park impact fee is to fund the one-time cost 
of expanding the District’s park and recreational facilities in order to maintain its existing 
level of service. The legal and policy basis for imposing the current park impact fee is 
supported by the District’s Park Impact Fee Nexus Study, dated November 2006, which 
was approved by the District Board of Directors on January 17, 2007 by Resolution No. 
2007-01 and later adopted by the El Dorado County Board of Supervisors on July 10, 2007 
by Resolution No. 178-2007.   
 
This Park Impact Fees Nexus Study (“Nexus Study”) was prepared pursuant to the 
“Mitigation Fee Act” as found in Government Code § 66000 and El Dorado County Code 
Chapter 13.20.  The purpose of this Nexus Study is to establish the legal and policy basis 
for the imposition of new park impact fees (‘fees”) on new residential development within 
the District.   
 
In order to impose such fees, this Nexus Study will demonstrate that a reasonable 
relationship or “nexus” exists between new development and the need for additional park 
and recreational facilities with the District as a result of new development.  More 
specifically, this Nexus Study will present findings in order to meet the substantive 
requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act (“Act”), also known as AB 1600, which are as 
follows: 

 Identify the purpose of the fee. 

 Identify the use to which the fee is to be put.   

 Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee's use and the 
type of development project on which the fee is imposed (“benefit relationship”).   

 Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the park 
and recreational facilities and the type of development project on which the fee is 
imposed (“impact relationship”). 

 Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee 
and the cost of the facilities or portion of the facilities attributable to the 
development on which the fee is imposed (“proportional relationship”). 

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 2 

Additionally, the Act specifies that the fee shall not include costs attributable to existing 
deficiencies in public facilities but may include the costs attributable to the increased 
demand for public facilities reasonably related to the development project in order to 
refurbish existing facilities to maintain the existing level of service or achieve an adopted 
level of service that is consistent with the general plan.   
 

METHODOLOGY / APPROACH 

To determine the District’s park impact fee consistent with these substantive 
requirements, this Nexus Study utilizes a districtwide, per capita standard-based 
methodology.  Under this method, the cost components are based on the District’s existing 
level of service (“LOS”) standards and defined on a per capita basis.  For the residential 
park impact fee, the total per capita costs are applied to three residential land use 
categories according their respective dwelling unit occupancy factor to establish a cost / 
fee per unit.   
 
The Nexus Study also identifies the fair share cost of park and recreational facilities 
needed to serve existing development at the same facilities standard applied to new 
development. The identification and use of a facilities standard ensure that new 
development will only fund the share of planned facilities needed to accommodate growth.  
Thus, consistent with the Act, this Nexus Study demonstrates that there is a reasonable 
relationship between new development, the amount of the fee, and park and recreational 
facilities funded by the fee. 
 
Since the Act also prohibits development impact fees from being used to fund existing 
deficiencies in public facilities, the fees must be used to fund only new or expanded park 
and recreational facilities that add to the park and recreational facility capacity of the 
District.  The use of fee proceeds for rehabilitation of existing park and recreational 
facilities is limited in that they may only cover the portion of the improvement that expands 
service capacity. For example, if the District planned to replace a shade structure with an 
existing park with a significantly larger shade structure, park impact fee proceeds could 
fund the portion equal to the percentage increase in the square footage of the larger shade 
structure, or by another reasonable measurement.  (See Figure 10 for more information.) 
 
It is important to note that the maximum park impact fee determined by this Nexus Study is 
not directly influenced by the level of development. The park impact fee is determined with 
an open-end approach based on the District’s level of service rather a definite facility plan 
and a definite level of future development. Therefore, the park impact fee will not be 
affected whether the actual level of development is at significantly higher or lower rate than 
projected. 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 3 

 
The Nexus Study also details the procedural requirements for adoption of the Nexus 
Study and proposed park impact fee programs (“fee programs”) by the District Board.  
Also, the Act contains specific requirements for the annual administration of the fee 
program.  These statutory requirements and other important information regarding the 
imposition and collection of the fees are provided in the last sections of the Nexus Study.  

 

SUMMARY OF GENERAL FINDINGS 

Based on a review of the District’s Master Plan, the County General Plan and El Dorado 
County Code Chapter 13.20, the following general findings are presented:  

1. Park impact fees, pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, are needed to ensure that 
the District can develop park and recreation facilities and improvements needed 
for the population growth created by new development. 

2. The current park impact fee imposed by El Dorado County, on behalf of the District 
was established in 2007 and has never been adjusted for inflation. 

   

 FIGURE 1 – CURRENT PARK IMPACT FEE (2007) 

Land Use Catergory

Current Park 
Impact Fee 

(Effective 2007)

Per Dwelling Unit

Single-Family Detached $4,984

Single-Family Attached $3,690

Multi-Family Residential $3,816

Mobile Home $2,467
 

 

3. Based on the District’s current population and existing park acres, the District’s 
existing level of service is 4.73 acres of developed parks, 1.66 acres of open 
space and 0.20 miles of trails and for every 1,000 residents.   

4. According to the District’s landscape architects, the estimated cost for park 
development is $450,000 per acre.    

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 4 

5. A reasonable relationship or “nexus” exists between new development in the 
District and the need for additional developed parks and recreational facilities as a 
result of new development.  Consistent with nexus requirements of the Act, this 
Nexus Study demonstrates that there is a reasonable relationship between new 
development, the amount of the proposed fee, and park and recreational facilities 
funded by the fee. 

6. The District may approve, and the County may adopt the following fee in Figure 2 
at or below the level determined by this Nexus Study.  If the District and County 
choose to adopt a fee lower than justified, the adopted fees for each land use 
classification must be reduced by the same percentage.    

 
FIGURE 2 – MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE  

Land Use Catergory
Proposed Park 

Impact Fee

Per Dwelling Unit

Single-Family Housing $6,645

Multi-Family Housing $5,435

Mobile Home $3,402

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 5 

SUMMARY OF GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the findings presented in the Nexus Study, the following general 
recommendations are presented: 

1. The proposed park impact fee should be adopted and implemented in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act (California Government 
Code § 66000 et seq.) and El Dorado County Code Chapter 13.20. 

2. The District and the County should comply with the annual reporting requirements 
under Government Code § 66006(b).   

3. Following the fifth fiscal year after the first deposit of fee revenue and every five 
years thereafter, the District and the County should comply with the reporting 
requirements under Government Code § 66001(d). 

4. The cost estimates presented in this Nexus Study are in 2019 dollars. The 
adopted park impact fees should be adjusted annually by the percentage change 
in the Construction Cost Index as published by the Engineering News-Record, or 
its successor publication for the preceding twelve months. 

5. In order to comply with the Act and recent court cases, a fee credit must be given 
for demolished existing square footage as part of a new development project. 

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 6 

EXISTING PARK FACILITIES AND LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARDS 

This Nexus Study utilizes a per capita-standard based methodology to determine the park 
impact fee because the need for and demand for park and recreational services is driven 
by its service population.  Using this approach, park and recreational facility costs are 
reduced to a cost per capita based on the District’s existing level of service standards for 
such facilities.   
 

POPULATION PROJECTION 

Figure 3 presents the District’s current and projected population through 2036.  The 
District’s current population was determined using figures from the U.S. Census Bureau’s 
2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate for the Cameron Park Census-
Designated Place and El Dorado County Assessor’s data as of February 2019. The 
District’s 2036 population was projected based on annual growth rates for housing, 
population, and employment by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (“SACOG”) 
for the Cameron Park Census-Designated Place.  As shown below, it is estimated that the 
District’s population, as of January 2019, is approximately 19,697 residents.  It is projected 
that the District will grow by 5,122 residents to a population of 24,819 by 2036.   
 

FIGURE 3 – POPULATION PROJECTION 

Population Projection 2019 2025 2030 2036

Growth 
2019 thru 

2036

Cameron Park CSD 19,697 21,373 22,878 24,819 5,122

Source:  2010 U.S. Census; El Dorado County Assessor and the Sacramento Area Council 
of Governments  

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 7 

DEVELOPED PARKS 

According to the District’s Master Plan, neighborhood parks are typically a combination 
playground and park designed primarily for non-supervised, non-organized recreation 
activities.  They are typically 2 to 10 acres in size.  Community parks, range from 10 acres 
to 100 acres in size, are designed for organized groups or team sports, while also 
providing facilities for individual and family activities.   
 
The District has six (6) developed neighborhood parks and four (4) developed community 
parks totaling 93.1 acres or 4.73 acres for every 1,000 residents.  However, the District’s 
Master Plan standard for developed parks is 5 acres per 1,000 residents.  Therefore, to 
accommodate the anticipated population growth of 5,122 new residents by 2036, an 
additional 24.2 acres of developed park area will be required. 
 

TRAILS AND NATURAL OPEN SPACE AREAS  

Natural open space areas (“open space”) are for passive uses and provide space for trails, 
picnic sites and jogging circuits.  They also provide use of waterways or serve as 
transportation corridors for trails.  The District owns and maintains 3.85 miles of trails (or 
1.66 acres for every 1,000 residents) within the District  Additionally, the District owns and 
maintains 32.60 acres of open space area or (0.2 miles per 1,000 residents) within the 
District.  It is the District’s intention maintain its existing level of services for these areas.  

 

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 8 

PER CAPITA COST COMPONENTS 

As previously mentioned, this Nexus Study utilizes a per capita-based methodology to 
determine the park impact fees because the need for / demand for park and recreational 
services is inherently driven by population.  This section presents the per capita cost for 
the development of park and recreational facilities, open space, and trails based on the 
District’s level of service standards for each.  
 

PARK DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA 

Figure 4 calculates the per capita cost of developing new parks and open space area in 
the District.  As presented, the District’s existing level of service of 4.73 acres per 1,000 
population is multiplied by the estimated per acre cost for parkland development to arrive 
at a per capita cost.  The average park development cost per acre shown represents 
average construction cost (in 2019 dollars) for a typical neighborhood park.1   
 

FIGURE 4 – PARK DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA 

Cost Component

Acres per 1,000 

Residents 1
Acres per 

Capita 1 

Average 
Development 

Cost per Acre 2 Cost per Capita
Calc a b = a / 1,000 c d = b * c

Developed Parks 4.73 0.00473 $450,000 $2,128.50

Open Space 1.66 0.00166 $5,400 $8.96

Total Parks and Open Space 6.39 0.00639 $2,137.46

Source:  Cameron Park Community Services District; Foothill Associates

Notes:
1 Based on the District's existing level of service ("LOS) for developed parks and open space area.
2  See Appendix A for more detail.   

 

                                                 
 
1 Appendix A presents the District’s estimate of cost for park development.   

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 9 

TRAIL DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA 

Figure 5 calculates the per capita cost of developing new trails in the District.  The average 
development cost for trails assumes $292,700 per mile for a 10-foot-wide asphalt trail.  
The per mile cost estimate includes excavation, clearing and grubbing, environmental 
permits, plans and engineering, construction management and laying of the trial.     
 

FIGURE 5 – TRAIL DEVELOPMENT COST PER CAPITA 

Cost Component

Miles per 1,000 

Population 1
Miles per 

Capita 1 

Average 
Development 

Cost per Mile 2 Cost per Capita
Calc a b = a / 1,000 c d = b * c

Trails 0.2 0.0002 $292,700 $58.54

Source:  Cameron Park Community Services District; Foothills Associates

Notes:
1 Based on the District's existing level of service for trails.
2  Cost estimate provided in 2015 by Foothill Associates and adjusted by 8.4 percent for cost inflation.  
Assumes a 10 ft. wide asphalt trail.  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 10

PARK IMPACT FEE DETERMINATION 

This section presents the calculation of the park impact fee based on the per capita cost 
for park, open space and trail development and park impact fee program costs for the 
different residential land uses in the District.   
 

PARK IMPACT FEE COST COMPONENTS 

The figure below summarizes the per capita cost components from the previous section 
and includes an additional four percent for administration of the park impact fee program.  
The fee program administrative cost component is designed to recover the cost collection, 
documentation, annual reporting requirements, five-year report requirements, periodic 
Nexus Study updates, and other costs reasonably related to compliance with the Act.  As 
shown, the total per capita cost is $2,283.84. 
  

FIGURE 6 – PARK IMPACT FEE COST COMPONENTS 

Park Impact Fee Cost Components
Per Capita 

Costs

Park Development $2,128.50

Open Space Development $8.96

Trail Development $58.54

Park Impact Fee Program Administration 1 $87.84

 Total Cost per Capita $2,283.84

Notes:
1 Estimated at 4 percent of for the cost collection, documentation,
annual reporting requirements, five-year report requirements,
periodic Nexus Study updates, and other costs reasonably related
to compliance with the Act.  

 
 LAND USE CATEGORIES 

The Mitigation Fee Act requires that development impact fees be determined in a way that 
ensures a reasonable relationship between the fee and the type of development on which 
the fee is imposed.  Therefore, since the demand for and need for park and recreational 
services created by the District’s service population and since different residential land 
uses have varying household sizes, the park impact fee is expressed on a per unit basis 
based on their respective dwelling unit occupancy factor for three residential land uses.     
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 11

For the purposes of this park impact fee program, a "unit" generally means one or more 
rooms in a building or structure or portion thereof designed exclusively for residential 
occupancy by one or more persons for living or sleeping purposes and having kitchen and 
bath facilities, including mobile homes.   
 
The three residential land use categories are as follows: 

"Single-family housing" means one-family detached or attached dwelling units on 
separate parcels. 

“Multifamily housing” means buildings or structures designed for two or more 
families for living or sleeping purposes and having a kitchen and bath facilities for 
each family. 

“Mobile home” means a development area for residential occupancy in vehicles 
which require a permit to be moved on a highway, other than a motor vehicle 
designed or used for human habitation and for being drawn by another vehicle. 

 
DWELLING UNIT OCCUPANCY FACTOR 

Figure 7 on the following page presents the calculation of the average dwelling unit 
occupancy factor for the three residential land uses. The calculation is based information 
from the 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate from the 2010 U.S. 
Census for the Cameron Park Census-Designated Place (“CDP”) which found to be 
representative of the boundaries of the District.   
 

FIGURE 7 – DWELLING UNIT OCCUPANCY FACTOR (CAMERON PARK CDP) 

Land Use Categories
Occupied 

Dwelling Units
Total Number 
of Occupants

Dwelling Unit 
Occupancy 

Factor
Calc a b c = a / b

Single-Family Housing 5,443 15,860 2.91
Multi-Family Housing 1,495 3,563 2.38
Mobile Home 184 274 1.49

Average (2010 Census) 7,122 19,697 2.77

Source:  2010 U.S. Census for Cameron Park Census-Designated Place

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 12

PARK IMPACT FEE DETERMINATION 

Figure 8, the figure below presents the calculation of the maximum justified park impact 
fee.  As shown, the per-unit fee for the three residential land use categories is determined 
by multiplying their respective total cost per capita by their respective dwelling unit 
occupancy factor.  The District may approve, and the County may adopt fees lower than 
the justified amounts shown below, provided that it reduced by the same percentage for 
each land use category.   
 

FIGURE 8 – MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE 

Land Use Catergory Unit

Total Cost Per 

Capita 1

Dwelling Unit 
Occupancy 

Factor 2
Maximum Park 

Impact Fee 3

Calc a b c = a * b

Single-Family Housing Dwelling Unit $2,283.84 2.91 $6,645

Multi-Family Housing Dwelling Unit $2,283.84 2.38 $5,435

Mobile Home Dwelling Unit $2,283.84 1.49 $3,402

Notes:
1 See Figure 6.
2 See Figure 7.
3 Maximum park impact fee is rounded down to the nearest dollar.  

 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 13

PROJECTED PARK IMPACT FEE REVENUE 

Figure 9 projects park impact fee revenue through 2036.  Total park impact fee revenue (in 
2019 dollars) is estimated by multiplying the total cost per capita by the projected service 
population growth for the period.  As shown, it is projected the District will generate 
approximately $11.7 million (in 2019 dollars) by 2036.  Certainly, arguments can be made 
for higher or lower population growth.  However, the projected population growth and fee 
revenue are merely estimates for planning purposes.  The maximum fee amounts do not 
depend upon the timing and level of development.   
 

FIGURE 9 – PROJECTED PARK IMPACT FEE REVENUE  

 

Land Use Category

Total Cost per 

Capita 1

Projected 
Population 

Growth (2036) 1

Projected Park 
Impact Fee 

Revenue (2019$)
Calc a b c = a * b

Residential Development $2,283.84 5,122 $11,697,849

Notes:
1 See Figure 6.
3 See Figure 3.  

  
The fee revenue must be deposited into separate park impact fee accounts or funds in a 
manner to avoid any commingling of the fees with other revenues and funds of the District.  
The fee revenue will be restricted to the funding the cost of new or expanded park and 
recreational facilities needed to serve new development.  Additionally, fee revenue will be 
used to cover fee program administration costs such as collection, documentation, annual 
reporting requirements, five-year report requirements, periodic Nexus Study updates and 
other costs reasonably related to compliance with the Act.    Fee revenue may not be used 
to fund 1) the renovation of existing facilities and 2) operational, maintenance or repair 
costs.  See Figure 10 for more information.   

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 14

NEXUS FINDINGS 

This section frames the results of Nexus Study in terms of the legislated requirements to 
demonstrate the legal justification of the park impact fees (‘fees”).   The justification of the 
park impact fees on new development must provide information as set forth in Government 
Code § 66000.  These requirements are discussed below.  
 
PURPOSE OF THE FEE 

The purpose of the residential park impact fees is to fund new or expanded parks and 
recreational facilities, open space area and trails to meet the needs of the new residential 
population within the District.   
 
USE OF FEE REVENUE 

Park impact fee revenue will be used to fund the cost of new or expanded parks and 
recreational facilities, open space area, and trails to serve new development.  A summary 
of the allowable and prohibited uses of the fee revenue is provided in figure 10 below.     
 

FIGURE 10 – SUMMARY OF ALLOWABLE AND PROHIBITED USES OF FEE REVENUE 

Allowable Uses Prohibited Uses 

• Development of new park and 
recreational facilities (100%) 

 

• Development of new park and 
recreational facilities in existing parks 
that that expand service capacity 
(100%) 

 

• Park and recreational facility costs 
already incurred to provide growth-
related capacity (100%) 

 

• Portion of a park and recreational 
facility renovation projects in parks 
that expands service capacity 

 

• Collection, accounting, documentation, 
annual reporting requirements, five-
year report requirements, periodic 
Nexus Study updates, and other costs 
reasonably related to compliance with 
the Act. 

• Existing deficiencies, such as 
improvements to existing park and 
recreational facilities that do not expand 
service capacity 

• Parkland acquisition, development of 
regional parks, community use 
buildings, and swimming pools. 

• Operational, maintenance or repair 
costs 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 15

IMPACT RELATIONSHIP  

Since the need for park and recreational services is inherently population-driven, new 
residential development in the District will generate additional need for new parks and 
recreational services and the corresponding need for various facilities.  The fees will be 
used to develop and expand the District’s park and recreational facilities, open space 
areas, and trails required to serve new development. The fees’ use (new or expanded park 
and recreational facilities, open space areas, and trails) is therefore reasonably related to 
the type of project (new residential development) upon which it’s imposed.    
 
Each new residential development project will generate additional need for park and 
recreational services and the associated need for additional parks, recreational facilities, 
and trails.  The need is measured in proportion to the occupancy per dwelling unit for three 
residential land use categories and the District’s existing level of service for each.   
 
PROPORTIONALITY 

The amount of park and recreational facilities needed to serve a unit of development is 
based on the District’s existing level of service standard for such facilities.  The cost of new 
or expanded park and recreational facilities, open space areas, trail development, and fee 
program administrative costs are defined on a cost per capita basis.  These per capita 
costs are then applied to three residential land use categories based on their respective 
dwelling unit occupancy factor. 
 
The use of the dwelling unit occupancy factor to determine the park impact fee schedule 
achieves proportionality across the types of development on which the fee is imposed.  In 
general, a single-family home will generate a higher number of persons than a multifamily 
unit, and as a result, will pay a higher fee. Thus, the application of the park impact fee 
schedule to a specific project ensures a reasonable relationship between the fee and the 
cost of the park and recreational facilities attributable to that project. 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 16

FEE PROGRAM ADOPTION REQUIREMENTS 

The following are the general requirements for approval of the Nexus Study and proposed 
park impact fee program (“fee program”) by the District Board of Directors and adoption by 
the County Board of Supervisors on behalf of the District.  The specific statutory 
requirements for the adoption of the fee program may be found in the Mitigation Fee Act 
(California Govt. Code § 66000 et seq.) and County Code Chapter 13.20.  SCI 
recommends that the notice and hearing requirements be duplicated by the District and the 
County.   
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

1. The District Board of Directors shall conduct at least “one open and public 
meeting” as part of a regularly scheduled meeting on the proposed fee program.  

2. At least 14 days before the meeting, the District shall mail out a notice of the 
meeting to any interested party who filed a written request for notice of the 
adoption of new or increased fees. 

3. At least 10 days before the meeting, the District shall make available to the public 
the Nexus Study for review. 

4. At least 10 days before the public hearing, a notice of the time and place of the 
meeting shall be published twice in a newspaper of general circulation with at least 
five days intervening between the dates of first and last publication not counting 
such publication dates.   

5. After the public hearing, adopt a resolution approving the Nexus Study and 
proposed fee program with a recommendation that the County Board of 
Supervisors adopts the proposed fee program on behalf of the District. 

 
COUNTY OF EL DORADO 

1. The Board of Supervisors shall conduct at least “one open and public meeting” as 
part of a regularly scheduled meeting on the requested fee program.   

2. At least 14 days before the meeting, the County shall mail out a notice of the 
meeting to any interested party who filed a written request for notice of the 
adoption of new or increased fees. 

3. At least 10 days before the meeting, the County shall make available to the public 
the Nexus Study for review. 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 17

4. At least 10 days before the public hearing, a notice of the time and place of the 
meeting shall be published twice in a newspaper of general circulation with at least 
five days intervening between the dates of first and last publication not counting 
such publication dates.   

5. After the public hearing, adopt an ordinance establishing the proposed fee 
program on behalf of the District. 

6. The fee shall become effective 60 days after adoption of the ordinance or longer 
as specified by the ordinance. 

 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 18

FEE PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION REQUIREMENTS 

This section contains general recommendations for the annual administration of the park 
impact fee program.  The specific statutory requirements for the administration of the fee 
program may be found in the Mitigation Fee Act (California Govt. Code § 66000 et seq.). 
 

ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS 

Proceeds from the new park impact fee should be deposited into a separate fund or 
account so that there will be no commingling of fees with other revenue or unexpended 
balances of the existing fee program funds.  Once the old existing fee program funds have 
been spent, the accounts should be closed.  
 
The park impact fees should be expended solely for the purpose for which they were 
collected.  Any interest earned by such account should be deposited in that account and 
expended solely for the purpose for which originally collected. 
 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

The following information, entitled “Annual Report,” must be made available to the public 
within 180 days after the last day of each fiscal year: 

 a brief description of the type of fee in the account; 

 the amount of the fee; 

 the beginning and ending balance of the account; 

 the fees collected that year and the interest earned; 

 an identification of each public improvement for which the fees were expended 
and the amount of the expenditures for each improvement; 

 an identification of an approximate date by which development of the improvement 
will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing of an incomplete public improvement; 

 a description of each inter-fund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, 
including the public improvement on which the transferred or loaned fees will be 
expended, the date on which any loan will be repaid, and the rate of interest to be 
returned to the account; and 

 the amount of money refunded under section Govt. Code § 66001. 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 19

The District shall review the Annual Report at the next regularly scheduled public meeting, 
not less than 15 days after the Annual Report is made available to the public.  Notice of the 
time and place of the meeting, including the address where this information may be 
reviewed, shall be mailed, at least 15 days prior to the meeting, to any interested party 
who files a written request with the County for mailed notice of the meeting.  Any written 
request for mailed notices shall be valid for one year from the date on which it is filed 
unless a renewal request is filed. Renewal requests for mailed notices shall be filed on or 
before April 1 of each year.  The District Board may establish a reasonable annual charge 
for sending notices based on the estimated cost of providing the service.  
 
For the fifth fiscal year following the first receipt of any park impact fee proceeds, and 
every five years thereafter, the District must comply with Government Code Section 
66001(d)(1) by affirmatively demonstrating that the District still needs unexpended park 
impact fees to achieve the purpose for which it was originally imposed and that the District 
has a plan on how to use the unexpended balance to achieve that purpose.  Specifically, 
the District shall make the following findings, entitled “Five-Year Findings Report,” with 
respect to that portion of the account or fund remaining unexpended, whether committed 
or uncommitted: 

 Identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put; 

 Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which 
it is charged; 

 Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing in 
incomplete improvements; and 

 Designate the approximate dates on which the funding is expected to be 
deposited into the appropriate account or fund. 

 
The County shall provide for the refund of all or any part of such unexpended or 
unappropriated fee revenue, together with any actual interest accrued thereon, in the 
manner described in Government Code § 66001 (e) of the, to the current record owner of 
any property for which a fee was paid; provided that if the administrative costs of refunding 
such fee revenue exceed the amount to be refunded. 
 

ANNUAL INFLATIONARY ADJUSTMENT 

Each year, the park impact fee should be adjusted by the percentage change in the 
Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index as published by the Engineering News-
Record, or its successor publication for the preceding twelve months. 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 20

FEE CREDITS 

A fee credit must be given for demolished existing dwelling units or building square footage 
as part of a nonresidential development project in order to comply with the Act and recent 
court cases.  Additionally, if a developer dedicates land or builds specific park facilities 
under a turn-key agreement, the fee imposed on that development project may be 
adjusted to reflect a credit for the cost of the dedicated land, facilities constructed, and 
apparatus and equipment provided.  Specific provisions are detailed in County Code § 
13.20.170. 
 

EXEMPTIONS 

The park impact fee shall not be imposed on the following types of development: 

 All nonresidential development.  

 Any other development, entitled by state or federal statute, to an exemption from 
development impact fees, including but not limited to Government Code sections 
65961 or 66498 et seq.  

 
 
 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 21

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Estimate of Cost for Park Development  

Appendix B – Comparison of Current and Maximum Park Impact Fee 

Appendix C – El Dorado County Code Chapter 13.20 

 
 

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 22

APPENDIX A – ESTIMATE OF COST FOR PARK DEVELOPMENT 

FIGURE 11 – ESTIMATE OF COST FOR PARK DEVELOPMENT 

Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost 1 2019 $ 

Street frontage 425 LF $217 $92,225
Off street parking per stall 40 EA $3,388 $135,520
Neighborhood-Scale Playground 2 EA $108,400 $216,800
Basketball Court 1 EA $130,080 $130,080
Multi-purpose Field 2 EA $33,875 $67,750
Small Restroom 1 EA $169,375 $169,375
Single Picnic Shelter (20' X 20') 2 EA $67,750 $135,500
Picnic Tables 10 EA $2,033 $20,330
Entry Sign 1 EA $8,130 $8,130
Benches 4 EA $2,033 $8,132

Subtotal $983,842

On Site Work 2 5 AC $185,000 $925,000

Design, Engineering, Fees, Admin. 18% $1,908,842 $343,592

Total Project Cost (5 acres) $2,252,434

Average Cost Per Acre (rounded) $450,000

Notes:

Sources:  Cameron Park Community Services District; Foothill Associates and SCI 
Consulting Group

1 Unit costs are from District's 2015 Master Plan and adjusted by 8.4 percent for cost inflation.
2 On-site improvements includes site grading, utility connections, soil prep & amendments, 
automatic irrigation, planting, concrete pathways.

 
  

Attachment 2A



        
  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Page 23

APPENDIX B – COMPARISON OF CURRENT AND MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE 

FIGURE 12 – COMPARISON OF CURRENT AND MAXIMUM PARK IMPACT FEE 

Land Use Category Unit 1

Current Park 
Impact Fee 

(2007) 

Maximum 
Park Impact 
Fee (2019) $ Change  % Change

Calc a a b c = a - b d = c / a

Single-Family Housing DU $4,984 $6,645 $1,661 33.3%

Multi-Family Housing DU $3,816 $5,435 $1,619 42.4%

Mobile Home DU $2,467 $3,402 $935 37.9%

Notes:
1 DU means dwelling unit.

Attachment 2A



    Page 24 
    

  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

APPENDIX C – EL DORADO COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 13.20 

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT MITIGATION FEES FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS  
 
Sec. 13.20.010. - Purpose. 

This chapter sets forth the requirements for the establishment and administration of 
development impact mitigation fees collected by the County on behalf of a Special District 
within the County. For purposes of this chapter, "Special District" includes a fire 
improvement district, a community services district, a recreation and park district, or any 
other public agency authorized by law to provide fire protection, public recreation, or any 
other community service. A Special District may request the establishment and 
administration of a development impact mitigation fee under this chapter only if the Special 
District lacks statutory authority to independently impose a development impact mitigation 
fee.  (Ord. No. 5057 , § 2, 8-29-2017) 

Sec. 13.20.020. - Establishment of fee. 

At the request of the Special District and in compliance with the Mitigation Fee Act, 
Government Code §§ 66000—66025, the Board of Supervisors may, in its sole discretion, 
establish a development impact mitigation fee collected on behalf of the Special District 
upon the issuance of all building permits for development within the Special District. The 
Special District shall propose the amount of any new or modified fee, which shall be based 
on a study and written report that demonstrates and allows the Board of Supervisors to 
independently evaluate the appropriate nexus between the fee and the purpose for which it 
is to be charged. The fee revenue and any interest accrued thereon may only be used as 
provided in the Mitigation Fee Act.  (Ord. No. 5057 , § 2, 8-29-2017) 

Sec. 13.20.030. - Agreement required. 

The County may only collect and disburse fees on behalf of a Special District pursuant to a 
written agreement between the County and Special District that has been approved as to 
form by County Counsel. Even if a fee was created before enactment of this chapter, the 
County shall not disburse any fee on behalf of a Special District until the agreement 
required by this section is duly executed by the County and Special District. At a minimum, 
the agreement shall clearly define the rights and duties of each party and shall provide for 
the Special District to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its officers, agents, and 
employees harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, claims, 
judgments, costs, staff time, losses, expenses, and any other costs of defense arising out 
of, resulting from, or related to the creation, establishment, modification, collection, or 
disbursement of fees on behalf of the Special District or any other obligation of the Special 
District or County under the agreement to collect and distribute fees on behalf of the 
Special District, the Mitigation Fee Act, or this chapter. The agreement shall also provide 
that the Special District shall ensure that any fee collected on its behalf complies with the 
Mitigation Fee Act.  (Ord. No. 5057 , § 2, 8-29-2017) 

Attachment 2A



    Page 25 
    

  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

Sec. 13.20.040. - Developer construction of facilities. 

Whenever a developer is required, as a condition of approval of a development permit, to 
construct a public facility described in a resolution adopted pursuant to this chapter which 
facility is determined by the Special District to have supplemental size, length, or capacity 
over that needed for the impacts of that development, and when such construction is 
necessary to ensure efficient and timely construction of the facilities network, a 
reimbursement agreement with the developer and a credit against the fee, which would 
otherwise be charged pursuant to this chapter on the development project, shall be 
offered. The reimbursement amount shall not include the portion of the improvement 
needed to provide services or mitigate the need for the facility or the burdens created by 
the development.  (Ord. No. 5057 , § 2, 8-29-2017) 

Sec. 13.20.050. - Reductions and appeals. 
A. Reduction and/or appeals of a fee described in this chapter may be granted by 

the Chief Administrative Officer to a developer of any project under any one of 
the following scenarios: 

1. The requirements of this chapter have been incorrectly applied to the 
development project; and/or 

2. That application of the requirements of this chapter to the development 
project is unlawful under and/or conflict with federal, state, or local law 
and/or regulation including constituting an unlawful taking of property without 
just compensation. 

B. Application for reduction and/or appeals of a fee described in this chapter must 
be made no later than the date of application for the building permit for the 
development project on a form provided by the County and shall include 
payment of the fee. The burden of establishing by satisfactory factual proof the 
applicability and elements of this section shall be on the applicant. The 
applicant must submit full information in support of their submittal as requested 
by the Chief Administrative Officer. Failure to raise each and every issue that is 
contested in the application and provide appropriate support evidence will be 
grounds to deny the application and will also preclude the applicant from 
raising such issues in court. The Chief Administrative Officer may require at the 
expense of the applicant, review of the submitted materials by a third party.  

C. The County shall mail the applicant a final, written determination on the 
application for a reduction and/or appeal within 30 days of the appeal. Within 
ten days of receiving the final, written determination from the Chief 
Administrative Officer, the applicant may appeal the Chief Administrative 
Officer's decision to a Hearing Officer appointed under Chapter 12.28. The 
Hearing Officer shall issue a written decision within 30 days and the Hearing 
Officer's decision is final and not administratively appealable. The 30-day 
deadlines for decisions in this section may be extended by the County if the 
complexity of an application necessitates additional time. 

Attachment 2A



    Page 26 
    

  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

D. If a reduction, adjustment, or waiver is granted, any change in use within the 
project shall invalidate the waiver, adjustment, or reduction of the fee. 

E. Failure to timely submit an application for reduction and/or appeal of a fee under 
this section and a protest under Civil Code § 66020 shall constitute a failure to 
exhaust administrative remedies that shall preclude such person from 
challenging the fee in court.  (Ord. No. 5057 , § 2, 8-29-2017) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2A



    Page 27 
    

  

 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT   
PARK IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2A



  

 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  July 2, 2019 
  
FROM:  Vicky Neibauer, Finance/HR Officer 
  
AGENDA ITEM #3: ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEE 

REIMBURSEMENT  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: RECEIVE AND DISCUSS 
 
Section 53065.5 of the California Government Code requires special districts to disclose any 
reimbursement paid by Cameron Park Community Services District (District) within the 
immediately preceding Fiscal Year of at least $100 for each individual charge for services or 
products received. The disclosure requirement is fulfilled by including the reimbursement 
information in a document published and made available for public inspection at least 
annually. 
 
The attached report includes individual charges for services or products received of at least 
$100 for the Fiscal Year 2018-19. The report will be posted on the District webpage as well as 
the District Information Board to fulfill the “publishing and availability for public inspection” 
requirement.  Posting to the District website also meets a requirement for the District 
Transparency Certificate of Excellence from the California Special District Association. 
 
With the Budget and Administration Committee’s support, this item will be scheduled for 
approval by the Board of Directors on July 17, 2019. 
 
Attachments: 
3A - Board Member Reimbursement Report 
3B - Employee Reimbursement Report 



Cameron Park Community Services District
Vendor Activity 

From 9/30/2018 Through 6/26/2019

Attachment 3A

Page:  1

Vendor Name Expenses Check/Voucher Document Description

Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 7/19/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
07/09,10,18

Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 8/16/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
08/06,07,15

Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 10/18/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
10/01,11,17

Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 11/21/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 11/05, 
13, 14

Ellamae J. Wooten 400.00 12/20/2018 Director's Comp. Mtgs 
12/03,04, 07,19

Ellamae J. Wooten 200.00 1/17/2019 Dir. Comp Board & Comm 
mtgs Jan 2019

Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 2/28/2019 Direct. Comp Mtgs 02/04, 11, 
20

Ellamae J. Wooten 200.00 3/28/2019 Dir Comp Mtgs 03/04, 03/20
Ellamae J. Wooten 200.00 4/25/2019 Dir. Comp for Mtgs 04/01 & 

04/17/19
Ellamae J. Wooten 200.00 5/16/2019 Dir. Comp for mtgs 05/06 & 

05/15/19
Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 6/20/2019 Dir Comp mtgs 

Total Ellamae J. Woote 3,000.00 

Felicity Wood Carlson 300.00 1/17/2019 Dir. Comp Board & Comm 
mtgs Jan 2019

Felicity Wood Carlson 100.00 1/17/2019 Director Comp Board Mtg 
12/19/18

Felicity Wood Carlson 100.00 1/24/2019 Dir Comp Fire Mtg 01/23
Felicity Wood Carlson 300.00 2/28/2019 Direct. Comp Mtgs 
Felicity Wood Carlson 100.00 3/28/2019 Dir Comp Mtg 03/20

Felicity Wood Carlson 300.00 4/25/2019 Dir. Comp. for Mtgs 
04/01,04/02,04/17/19

Felicity Wood Carlson 200.00 5/16/2019 Dir. Comp for mtgs 
Felicity Wood Carlson 400.00 6/20/2019 Dir Comp Mtgs 

05/30,06/03,04,19

Total Felicity Wood Ca 1,800.00 

Holly Morrison 300.00 7/5/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
06/05,05,20

Holly Morrison 300.00 7/26/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
07/10,10,18

Holly Morrison 300.00 8/16/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
08/07,07,15

Holly Morrison 300.00 10/18/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
10/02,11,17

Holly Morrison 400.00 11/29/2018 Dir Comp Mtgs 11/5,13,13,14



Cameron Park Community Services District
Vendor Activity 

From 9/30/2018 Through 6/26/2019

Attachment 3A

Page:  2

Holly Morrison 400.00 12/20/2018 Director's Comp. Mtgs 
12/04,04, 07, 19

Holly Morrison 300.00 1/24/2019 Dir Comp Mtgs 01/07,08,23
Holly Morrison 100.00 2/28/2019 Direct. Comp Mtg 02/20
Holly Morrison 400.00 3/28/2019 Dir Comp Mtgs 
Holly Morrison 300.00 4/25/2019 Dir. Comp for Mtgs 

04/01,04/02, 04/17/19
Holly Morrison 300.00 5/16/2019 Dir. Comp for mtgs 
Holly Morrison 500.00 6/20/2019 Dir Comp mtgs 

05/30,06/03,04,04,19

Total Holly Morrison 3,900.00 

Margaret Mohr 300.00 8/16/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 07/03 
& 08/07,15

Margaret Mohr 300.00 10/18/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
10/2,11,17

Margaret Mohr 200.00 11/21/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 11/13, 
Margaret Mohr 300.00 12/20/2018 Director's Comp. Mtgs 12/04, 

07 & 12/19
Margaret Mohr 200.00 1/17/2019 Dir. Comp. Board & Comm. 

Mtgs Jan 2019
Margaret Mohr 300.00 2/28/2019 Direct. Comp Mtgs 
Margaret Mohr 300.00 3/28/2019 Dir Comp Mtgs 03/05,05,20
Margaret Mohr 200.00 4/25/2019 Dir. Comp for Mtgs 04/02 & 

04/17/19
Margaret Mohr 300.00 5/16/2019 Dir. Comp for mtgs 05/07,15 

& 22

Total Margaret Mohr 2,400.00 

Monique Scobey 300.00 7/19/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
07/09,09,18

Monique Scobey 400.00 10/18/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 
10/01,01,11,17

Monique Scobey 100.00 11/21/2018 Director's Comp Mtg 11/14
Monique Scobey 400.00 12/20/2018 Director's Comp Mtgs 

12/03,03, 07,19
Monique Scobey 300.00 1/17/2019 Dir. Comp Board & Comm. 

Mtgs Jan 2019
Monique Scobey 300.00 2/28/2019 Direct. Comp Mtgs 
Monique Scobey 300.00 3/28/2019 Dir Comp Mtgs 03/04,05,20

Monique Scobey 300.00 4/25/2019 Dir. Comp for Mtgs 
04/01,04/02,04/17/19

Total Monique Scobey 2,400.00 

Report Transaction To  13,500.00 



Cameron Park Community Services District
Vendor Activity 

From 9/30/2018 Through 6/26/2019

Attachment 3B

Page:  1

Vendor Name Expenses Check/Voucher Document Description

Jill Ritzman 100.00 7/5/2018 Cell Allowance -July J. Ritzman

Jill Ritzman 100.00 8/2/2018 Cell Allowance - August J. Ritzman

Jill Ritzman 100.00 9/6/2018 Cell Allowance - Sept J. Ritzman

Jill Ritzman 100.00 10/4/2018 Cell Allowance Oct 2018
Jill Ritzman 929.30 10/11/2018 Reimb Soc Sec refund Jan & Feb 18 -  

941 Amend - IRS Q1 2018

Jill Ritzman 100.00 11/1/2018 Cell Allowance - November J. Ritzman

Jill Ritzman 100.00 12/6/2018 Cell Allowance - Dec 2018
Jill Ritzman 100.00 1/3/2019 Cell Allowance January 2019
Jill Ritzman 100.00 2/7/2019 Cell Allowance - Feb 2019
Jill Ritzman 100.00 3/7/2019 Cell Allowance March
Jill Ritzman 100.00 4/4/2019 Cell Allowance - April 2019
Jill Ritzman 100.00 5/2/2019 Cell Allowance -May 2019
Jill Ritzman 100.00 6/6/2019 Cell phone allowance - June 2019

Total Jill Ritzman 2,129.30 

Kate Magoolaghan 193.22 5/9/2019 CC&R copies, postage, car, misc REIMB 
Nov-Apr 2019

Total Kate Magoolagha 193.22 

Michael Grassle 100.00 7/5/2018 Cell Allowance -  July M. Grassle

Michael Grassle 3,624.30 7/19/2018 Shed purchase, Home Depot credit 
limited, reimburse on personal CC

Michael Grassle 100.00 8/2/2018 Cell Allowance -August M. Grassle

Michael Grassle 117.18 8/30/2018 Mileage August

Michael Grassle 100.00 9/6/2018 Cell Allowance -Sept. M. Grassle

Michael Grassle 100.00 10/4/2018 Cell Allowance Oct 2018
Michael Grassle 132.98 10/4/2018 Milieage - M. Grassle Sept 2018
Michael Grassle 100.00 11/1/2018 Cell Allowance - November M. Grassle

Michael Grassle 134.07 11/1/2018 Mileage Reimb - M. Grassle Oct 2018

Michael Grassle 100.00 12/6/2018 Cell Allowance - Dec 2018
Michael Grassle 102.46 12/13/2018 Mileage reimb - Pers car - business Nov 

2018
Michael Grassle 188.29 1/3/2019 Cell Allowance Jan. 2019 & Mileage 

Reimb Dec. 2018
Michael Grassle 100.00 2/7/2019 Cell Allowance - Feb 2019



Cameron Park Community Services District
Vendor Activity 

From 9/30/2018 Through 6/26/2019

Attachment 3B

Page:  2

Michael Grassle 182.70 2/7/2019 Mileage Reimb - Jan 2019
Michael Grassle 150.00 2/21/2019 Work Boots Reimb
Michael Grassle 106.72 2/28/2019 Mileage Reimb - Feb 2019
Michael Grassle 100.00 3/7/2019 Cell Allowance March
Michael Grassle 217.42 3/21/2019 Metasys training incidentals/meals/travel

Michael Grassle 189.66 3/28/2019 March Mileage Reimb
Michael Grassle 100.00 4/4/2019 Cell Allowance - April 2019
Michael Grassle 100.00 5/2/2019 Cell Allowance - May 2019
Michael Grassle 133.40 5/9/2019 Mileage Reimb - April 2019
Michael Grassle 100.00 6/6/2019 Cell phone allowance - June 2019

Michael Grassle 125.28 6/6/2019 Mileage Reimb May 2019
Total Michael Grassle 6,504.46 

Mike Merritt 150.00 2/28/2019 Work Boots - Reimb
Total Mike Merritt 150.00 

Niki Garrison 435.83 11/1/2018 Lodging & Mileage 2018 Board Conf. N. 
Garrison

Niki Garrison 235.85 12/20/2018 Board Mtg reception supplies/food 
12/19/18 - Reimb.

Total Niki Garrison 671.68 

Vicky Neibauer 104.68 8/23/2018 Mileage & Prkng Reimbs August

Vicky Neibauer 199.00 10/25/2018 1 year sub for online courses (V. 
Niebauer) reimb

Total Vicky Neibauer 303.68 



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Payroll 05-31-1935,595.95 Payroll 05-31-19 5/31/2019

Total Payroll 05-3...35,595.95 

Payroll 06-14-1955,438.10 Payroll 06-14-19 Summer Start 6/14/2019

Total Payroll 06-1...55,438.10 

3049649er Communications, Inc. 485.30 FD89 Radio Equipment (AVL) 
05/22/19

6/13/2019

Total 30496485.30 

30431Abila 687.00 Accounting Software 
05/20-06/19/19

6/6/2019

Total 30431687.00 

30542Abila 687.00 Accounting software 
06/20-07/19/19

6/20/2019

Total 30542687.00 

30497Acer Landscape Materials, Inc 236.63 Blue Road Base -CP Lake 
05/02/19

6/13/2019

Total 30497236.63 

30432ADM Screening 135.00 Per-Emp testing  - Rec 6/6/2019

ADM Screening 270.00 Per-Emp testing  - Rec may 
2019

6/6/2019

Total 30432405.00 

30498ADM Screening 180.00 Pre-Emp testing - REC 6/13/2019

Total 30498180.00 

30543ADM Screening 440.00 Pre-emp testing RES FF's 6/20/2019

Total 30543440.00 

30499Airespring Inc. 564.57 Internet Broadbands CSD/Lake 
May 2019

6/13/2019

Total 30499564.57 

30433Airgas National Carbonation 116.04 C02 Pool 05/24/19 6/6/2019

Airgas National Carbonation 229.30 C02 Lagoon 05/24/19 6/6/2019

Total 30433345.34 

30500Airgas National Carbonation 184.56 C02 Lagoon 05/31/19 6/13/2019

Airgas National Carbonation 276.32 C02 Pool 05/31/19 6/13/2019

Item #4

1



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Airgas National Carbonation 260.95 C02 tank rental Lagoon 
05/31/19

6/13/2019

Total 30500721.83 

30544Airgas National Carbonation 210.08 C02 delv for Lagoon 06/06/19 6/20/2019

Airgas National Carbonation 211.11 C02 delv Pool 06/06/19 6/20/2019

Total 30544421.19 

30502Alhambra 80.56 Water delv 05/20 & 06/03 & 
cooler rental

6/13/2019

Total 3050280.56 

30545Allstar Fire Equipment, Inc. 5,491.97 Fire training equipment 6/20/2019

Total 305455,491.97 

30473Alyssa Kimball 69.30 Mileage Reimb - May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 3047369.30 

30593Andrew Stumpf 5,000.00 Speaker at FD Stand Down 
training event June 2019

6/20/2019

Total 305935,000.00 

30494Andrew Webb 744.90 Inst. All Tennis May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 30494744.90 

30546Angius & Terry LLP 270.00 CC&R Legal Counsel 05/01 & 
05/15/19

6/20/2019

Total 30546270.00 

30503Arnolds for Awards, Inc. 35.00 Wine Cooler Logo/Etching FD 6/13/2019

Total 3050335.00 

30434AT&T Calnet 3 149.70 FD89 Phones 04/24-05/23/19 6/6/2019

Total 30434149.70 

30547AT&T Calnet 3 20.65 FD Phones 05/10-06/09/19  
BAN 9391035819

6/20/2019

Total 3054720.65 

30548AT&T Calnet 3 20.63 FD Phones 05/10-06/09/19 
BAN 9391035820

6/20/2019

Total 3054820.63 

Item #4

2



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30504Barbara Barisone 150.00 Inst. Water Aerobics - May 
2019

6/13/2019

Total 30504150.00 

30437Better Behavior Club 40.00 Classroom B rental 05/26, 
deposit refund

6/6/2019

Total 3043740.00 

30468Bettina S. Helm 60.00 Cell phone allowance - June 
2019

6/6/2019

Total 3046860.00 

30490Blain Stumpf Trucking 685.09 Sand for Lagoon 05/22/19 6/6/2019

Total 30490685.09 

30438Bravo Security Services Inc. 2,702.00 Security for Summer 
Spectacular 2019

6/6/2019

Total 304382,702.00 

30549Bravo Security Services Inc. 487.50 Event Security for CC 06/22/19 6/20/2019

Total 30549487.50 

30567Brittany Hieb 750.00 Northview weedeating srvcs 6/20/2019

Total 30567750.00 

30477Brittany Montgomery 40.00 Classrm B rental 05/19/19 , 
deposit refund

6/6/2019

Total 3047740.00 

30551Buckeye Union School District 212.50 Kidz Kamp Bus 05/29/19 6/20/2019

Total 30551212.50 

30439C & H Motor Parts, Inc 415.94 FD Stinger flashlight 2 6/6/2019

Total 30439415.94 

1001320839California Public Employee's 
Retirement System

17,582.39 June 2019 CalPERS Health 
Payment

6/3/2019

Total 100132083917,582.39 

1001328776California Public Employee's 
Retirement System

1,045.93 PPE 05/25/19 CalPERS 
Retirement - Classic

5/31/2019

Total 10013287761,045.93 

Item #4

3



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

1001328778California Public Employee's 
Retirement System

2,866.11 PPE 05/25/19 CalPERS 
Retirement - Pepra

5/31/2019

Total 10013287782,866.11 

1001338217California Public Employee's 
Retirement System

1,039.20 PPE 06/08/19 CalPERS 
Retirement - Classic

6/14/2019

Total 10013382171,039.20 

1001338219California Public Employee's 
Retirement System

2,909.32 PPE 06/08/19 CalPERS 
Retirement - Pepra

6/14/2019

Total 10013382192,909.32 

1001328720CalPERS 457 Plan 200.00 PPE 05/25/19 CalPERS 457 Plan 5/31/2019

Total 1001328720200.00 

1001338213CalPERS 457 Plan 200.00 PPE 06/08/19 CalPERS 457 Plan 6/14/2019

Total 1001338213200.00 

30505Cap City Sports Academy LLC 535.00 Multisport camp - Skyhawks 6/13/2019

Total 30505535.00 

30552Capitol Clutch & Brake, Inc. 1,346.59 FD E89 parts 6/20/2019

Total 305521,346.59 

30440CardConnect 50.00 Lease Bolt CC devices May 
2019

6/6/2019

Total 3044050.00 

30442Churchill's Hardware, Inc. 127.45 FD hardware receipts 
05/04-05/29/19

6/6/2019

Total 30442127.45 

30443Churchill's Hardware, Inc. 252.64 CC, Lake, Parks Hardware 
receipts 05/02-05/28/19

6/6/2019

Total 30443252.64 

30506Cintas Corporation #2 31.88 CP Lake shed First Aid supplies 
06/06/19

6/13/2019

Total 3050631.88 

30554Cintas Corporation #2 295.63 CC Janitorial supplies 06/13/19 6/20/2019

Total 30554295.63 

Item #4

4



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30507Cintas Corporation #622 276.77 CC Janitorial Supplies 06/06/19 6/13/2019

Total 30507276.77 

30508Citadel Electric, Inc. 12,597.00 FD88 Backup Generator & 
install

6/13/2019

Total 3050812,597.00 

30555Comcast 153.08 FD89 Internet 06/11-07/10/19 6/20/2019

Total 30555153.08 

30556Comcast 44.99 FD88 Internet 06/14-07/13/19 6/20/2019

Total 3055644.99 

30510Conforti Plumbing, Inc 958.33 Lake drinking fountain rebuild 6/13/2019

Total 30510958.33 

30511CoreLogic Solutions LLC 165.00 CC&R Map Software May 2019 6/13/2019

Total 30511165.00 

30487Craig Shuler 60.00 Cell phone allowance - June 
2019

6/6/2019

Total 3048760.00 

30564Cynthia J. Gillihan 80.00 Lagoon signs- repair 6/20/2019

Total 3056480.00 

30559Danielle Diaz 251.39 PP12 50% payroll check 
replcmnt, Sav acct invalid per 
Paychx

6/20/2019

Total 30559251.39 

30570Dave Ito 64.00 EMT Recert FD Reimb 6/20/2019

Total 3057064.00 

30501David Airola 120.00 Summer Splash camp - refund 6/13/2019

Total 30501120.00 

30435Dawn Avalon 132.00 Inst. Tai Chi Health March, 
April & May 2019

6/6/2019

Total 30435132.00 

Item #4

5



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30512De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 87.97 FD88 Copier Lease 
05/15/19-06/14/19

6/13/2019

Total 3051287.97 

30513De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 176.96 FD89 Copier Lease payment 
June 2019

6/13/2019

Total 30513176.96 

30446Delta Dental of California 1,152.61 Dental Benefits June 2019 6/6/2019

Total 304461,152.61 

30533Dennis Romary 500.00 Encroachment Permit Deposit 
- refund

6/13/2019

Total 30533500.00 

30447Department of Industrial Relations 292.50 P00819 Slide Re-Inspection 
05/29/19

6/6/2019

Total 30447292.50 

30514Department of Industrial Relations 125.00 Inspection E 1652491 SA 
Stage/Wheelchair lift

6/13/2019

Total 30514125.00 

30515Department of Justice 672.00 Pre-Emp 
fingerprinting/backgrd chks 
REC & FD

6/13/2019

Total 30515672.00 

30448Dept. of Forestry & Fire Protection 285,375.48 3rd Qtr Cal Fire 2018/2019 
#27753

6/6/2019

Total 30448285,375.48 

30449Dept. of Forestry & Fire Protection 577,709.09 3rd Qtr Cal Fire 2018/2019 
#27750

6/6/2019

Total 30449577,709.09 

30558Dept. of the CA Highway Patrol 2,156.60 Summer Spectacular CHP 
services 06/29/19

6/20/2019

Total 305582,156.60 

30450DSA Technologies, Inc 1,649.00 MSA, IT Maint June 2019 6/6/2019

Total 304501,649.00 

Item #4

6



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30516EDC Emergency Services Authority 5,411.45 FY 18/19 3rd Qtr Dispatch 
(Jan-Mar 2019)

6/13/2019

Total 305165,411.45 

30451El Dorado Irrigation District 2,047.76 Water/Sewer 03/26-05/30/19 
CP lake

6/6/2019

Total 304512,047.76 

30452El Dorado Irrigation District 1,096.89 Water 03/23-05/21/19 Christa 6/6/2019

Total 304521,096.89 

30453El Dorado Irrigation District 125.44 Water 03/23-05/21/19 Dog 
Park

6/6/2019

Total 30453125.44 

30454El Dorado Irrigation District 119.20 Water/Landscp 
03/22-05/20/19 Chardi

6/6/2019

Total 30454119.20 

30455El Dorado Irrigation District 357.87 Water 03/23-05/21/19 Bar J B 6/6/2019

Total 30455357.87 

30456El Dorado Irrigation District 398.17 Water 03/28-05/24/19 D. West 6/6/2019

Total 30456398.17 

30457El Dorado Irrigation District 243.07 Water/Sewer 03/26-05/30/19 
Rasm Park

6/6/2019

Total 30457243.07 

30458El Dorado Irrigation District 328.56 Water/Landscp 
03/23-05/22/19 Bar J 15A

6/6/2019

Total 30458328.56 

30459El Dorado Irrigation District 1,268.91 Water/Sewer 03/22-05/30/19 
FD89

6/6/2019

Total 304591,268.91 

30460El Dorado Irrigation District 1,272.29 Water/Sewer 03/22-05/30/19 
Pool

6/6/2019

Total 304601,272.29 

30461El Dorado Irrigation District 671.43 Water/Sewer 03/22-05/30/19 
CC

6/6/2019

Item #4

7



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Total 30461671.43 

30462El Dorado Irrigation District 462.68 Water/Sewer 03/26-05/30/19 
FD88

6/6/2019

Total 30462462.68 

30463El Dorado Irrigation District 194.00 Water/Sewer 03/23-05/30/19 
Christa RR

6/6/2019

Total 30463194.00 

30561El Dorado Weed Control 611.37 Gateway Park - Chem weed 
control srvcs

6/20/2019

El Dorado Weed Control 1,880.15 Hacienda Park  - Chem weed 
control srvcs

6/20/2019

El Dorado Weed Control 677.72 Parks - Chem weed control 
srvcs

6/20/2019

Total 305613,169.24 

30602Ellamae J. Wooten 300.00 Dir Comp mtgs 05/30,06/03,19 6/20/2019

Total 30602300.00 

30539Emily Truman 66.00 Swim class cancel 6/13/2019

Total 3053966.00 

30553Felicity Wood Carlson 400.00 Dir Comp Mtgs 
05/30,06/03,04,19

6/20/2019

Total 30553400.00 

30517Foothill Auto Service, Inc. 495.40 CC&R vehicle - auto repair 6/13/2019

Total 30517495.40 

30562Foothill Auto Service, Inc. 1,041.38 99 Ford Exp Maint - parks 6/20/2019

Total 305621,041.38 

30518G & O Body Shop 65.00 FD88 Towing charges U289 6/13/2019

Total 3051865.00 

30557Gary Coverdale 600.00 Sum Spect. Opening Band 6/20/2019

Total 30557600.00 

30563Gilchrist Golf Cars,  Inc. 997.13 Sum Spect Golf Cart rentals 
06/29/19

6/20/2019

Total 30563997.13 

Item #4

8



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30565Gold Country Equipment Center 117.76 Equip oil - Parks 6/20/2019

Total 30565117.76 

30466Gold Country Hardware 17.77 Parks supplies 05/13/19 6/6/2019

Total 3046617.77 

30464Greg Gibson 35.00 Tai Chi class cancelled - refund 6/6/2019

Total 3046435.00 

30560Hayley Durham-Filo 475.00 Coed SB league cancelled - 
refund

6/20/2019

Total 30560475.00 

30469Highlander Termite & Pest Control 75.00 CC Pest Control 05/28/19 6/6/2019

Total 3046975.00 

30520Highlander Termite & Pest Control 35.00 FD88 Pest Control 06/04/19 
Cust#1035

6/13/2019

Total 3052035.00 

30521Highlander Termite & Pest Control 75.00 FD89 Pest Control 06/05/19 
Cust#713

6/13/2019

Total 3052175.00 

30470Hillyard, Inc. 402.79 Lake Janitorial Supplies 
05/22/19

6/6/2019

Total 30470402.79 

30582Holly Morrison 500.00 Dir Comp mtgs 
05/30,06/03,04,04,19

6/20/2019

Total 30582500.00 

30471Home Depot Credit Services 400.48 account - Lake/Parks supplies 6/6/2019

Total 30471400.48 

30522Hunt & Sons 706.97 Fuel 05/31/19 6/13/2019

Hunt & Sons 1,303.79 Fuel 06/07/19 6/13/2019

Total 305222,010.76 

30568Hunt & Sons 1,731.68 Fuel 06/14/19 6/20/2019

Total 305681,731.68 

Item #4

9



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30569Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. 206.25 Fire plan review 
Starbucks/Shell 
05/01-06/03/19 #201904290

6/20/2019

Total 30569206.25 

30571J&C Automotive 152.19 CC&R vehicle repair/maint 6/20/2019

Total 30571152.19 

30572J&M Displays, Inc 9,700.00 Summer Spect. Fireworks Final 
Pymt (2 of 2)

6/20/2019

Total 305729,700.00 

30436Jeff Balasa 200.00 Trucks & Tunes Band 06/12/19 6/6/2019

Total 30436200.00 

30445Jennifer Craig 40.00 NW Hall rental 05/19/19, 
deposit Refund

6/6/2019

Total 3044540.00 

30575Jennifer Jones 475.00 Coed SB league cancelled - 
refund

6/20/2019

Total 30575475.00 

30541Jessica Wunschel 286.00 Theater Arts camp - refund 6/13/2019

Total 30541286.00 

30483Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell phone allowance - June 
2019

6/6/2019

Total 30483100.00 

30574Jon Lyons 75.00 FD E289 a/c repair 6/20/2019

Total 3057475.00 

30472JS West Propane Gas 1,341.60 Propane Pool/Gym 05/21/19 6/6/2019

Total 304721,341.60 

30576JS West Propane Gas 969.44 Propane pool 06/03/19 6/20/2019

Total 30576969.44 

30524L.N. Curtis & Sons 470.83 FD Leather Boots 6/13/2019

Total 30524470.83 

Item #4

10



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

30578L.N. Curtis & Sons 772.20 Fire In Kind gear 6/20/2019

Total 30578772.20 

30476Larry McBride 600.00 In Lieu Retired Med Bens June 
2019

6/6/2019

Total 30476600.00 

30485Laura Sanders-Ito 30.50 Mailed Grant packet - reimb 
postage

6/6/2019

Laura Sanders-Ito 32.83 Mileage Reimb April/May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 3048563.33 

30523Lewis E. Johnson 82.80 Inst. Ukelele May 2019 6/13/2019

Total 3052382.80 

30579Lighting Unlimited,  Inc. 10.51 CC lightbulbs 6/20/2019

Total 3057910.51 

30475Lincoln Aquatics 239.41 Rope for Lagoon 05/20/19 6/6/2019

Total 30475239.41 

30580Lincoln Aquatics 235.55 Check Valve for tank at Lagoon 6/20/2019

Total 30580235.55 

30444Lucille Colquhoun 228.43 Kidz Kamp Staff Shirts 2019 6/6/2019

Total 30444228.43 

30509Lucille Colquhoun 366.35 Kidz Kamp tshirts 6/13/2019

Total 30509366.35 

30484Lynn Ryan 70.00 Ballet class cancel - refund 6/6/2019

Total 3048470.00 

30581Mad Science of Sacramento Valley 869.40 Eureka Summer camp class 
June 2019

6/20/2019

Total 30581869.40 

30594Mary Kay Templeton 132.00 Swim lessons cancelled - 
refund

6/20/2019

Total 30594132.00 

30535Melissa O'Meara Simpkin 79.90 Board Member shirts 6/13/2019

Item #4

11



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Total 3053579.90 

30467Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell phone allowance - June 
2019

6/6/2019

Michael Grassle 125.28 Mileage Reimb May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 30467225.28 

30478Mountain Democrat 205.92 FD89 newspaper renewal 
06/28/19-06/28/21

6/6/2019

Mountain Democrat 650.00 Spring/Summer 2019 
Adventure Ad

6/6/2019

Total 30478855.92 

30526Mountain Democrat 30.38 FY19/20 Pub Notice App limits 
06/07/19

6/13/2019

Total 3052630.38 

30583Mountain Democrat 69.60 Pub Notice Weed Abatement 
06/14

6/20/2019

Total 3058369.60 

30573MyFleetCenter.com 403.57 FD F150 truck maint 6/20/2019

Total 30573403.57 

30441Myung Chong 396.00 Inst. Mod Zumba May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 30441396.00 

30525Nancy Lenoil 143.00 Theater Arts camp - refund 6/13/2019

Total 30525143.00 

30584Neon Playboys 900.00 Sum Spect. Main Band 
remainder of pymt

6/20/2019

Total 30584900.00 

30479Pathian Administrators 171.93 Vision Benefits - June 2019 6/6/2019

Total 30479171.93 

20078512Paychex 406.48 Paychex Fees HR June 2019 6/14/2019

Paychex 515.78 Paychex Fees Stratustime & 
Bio clocks 04/27-05/31/19

6/14/2019

Total 20078512922.26 

2019052801Paychex 238.80 Paychex Payroll Fees for 
05-31-19

5/31/2019

Item #4

12



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Total 2019052801238.80 

2019061101Paychex 343.80 Paychex Payroll Fees for 
06-14-19 - Summer Start

6/14/2019

Total 2019061101343.80 

30480PG&E 1,907.45 Elec 04/26-04/30 & 
05/01-05/27 FD's & Carousel

6/6/2019

Total 304801,907.45 

30527PG&E 11,213.83 Elec LLad's / Parks 
04/26-05/28/19

6/13/2019

Total 3052711,213.83 

30528PG&E 3,500.63 Elec. Lake, Lagoon, BarJb 
04/26-05/27/19

6/13/2019

Total 305283,500.63 

30585PG&E 114.98 Elec - Parks 8 lamps 
05/17-06/17/19

6/20/2019

Total 30585114.98 

30586PG&E 158.10 Elec Parks 11 lamps 
05/17-06/17/19

6/20/2019

Total 30586158.10 

30529Ponderosa Auto Express, Inc. 1,106.07 FD89 2002 Ford Exped. Auto 
Srvc

6/13/2019

Ponderosa Auto Express, Inc. 2,591.33 FD89 2010 Ford F150 Auto Srvc 6/13/2019

Total 305293,697.40 

30588Ponderosa Auto Express, Inc. 432.92 FD89 truck maint. 6/20/2019

Total 30588432.92 

30481Prentice, Long & Epperson 1,458.00 Legal Srvcs, Mtgs, calls 
05/10-05/30/19

6/6/2019

Total 304811,458.00 

30530Public Employee's Union Local 1 145.09 Union Dues for Payroll 
06/14/19

6/13/2019

Total 30530145.09 

30482R.J. Ricciardi, Inc CPA's 8,637.69 FY 18/19 Audit hours for May 
2019

6/6/2019

Item #4

13



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Total 304828,637.69 

30531R.J. Ricciardi, Inc CPA's 4,560.00 FY 17/18 Audit for March 2019 6/13/2019

Total 305314,560.00 

30589Reyes Coca-Cola Bottling, LLC 437.32 Concession soda (w/ cm -$225) 6/20/2019

Total 30589437.32 

30474Richard A. Kowaleski 91.20 Inst. Dance classes May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 3047491.20 

30532Riverview International Trucks, Inc. 1,460.31 E388, FD auto parts 05/07/19 6/13/2019

Total 305321,460.31 

30590Riverview International Trucks, Inc. 162.97 E389 parts (w/ CM997517 
dryer return -$40.59)

6/20/2019

Riverview International Trucks, Inc. 286.77 FD E389 parts 6/20/2019

Total 30590449.74 

30465Robert A. Godwin 200.00 YFF Officials 4 Games 06/01/19 6/6/2019

Total 30465200.00 

30519Robert A. Godwin 250.00 YFF Officials 5 games 05/18/19 6/13/2019

Robert A. Godwin 150.00 YFF Officials 3 games 06/08/19 6/13/2019

Total 30519400.00 

30566Robert Granade 475.00 Men's SB league cancelled - 
refund

6/20/2019

Total 30566475.00 

30577Rosemarie Kelliher 218.40 Inst. Sewing June 2019 6/20/2019

Total 30577218.40 

30550Sarina Bronson 184.00 YFF cancelled - Luke refund 6/20/2019

Total 30550184.00 

30486SDRMA 400.00 Mathewson claim 05/01/19 
deductible

6/6/2019

Total 30486400.00 

30591Sierra Site Services 1,050.00 Sum Spect. Portable Toilet 
rentals

6/20/2019

Item #4

14



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Total 305911,050.00 

30488Sign Banner Print Express 51.16 Summer Spect flyers 2019 6/6/2019

Total 3048851.16 

30534Sign Banner Print Express 312.74 Emp Handbook print out x90 6/13/2019

Total 30534312.74 

30592SiteOne Landscape Supply 146.61 LLAD Equip maint. 6/20/2019

Total 30592146.61 

30536Soroptimist International CP/EDH 300.00 Full hall rental 04/11/19 - 
deposit refund

6/13/2019

Total 30536300.00 

30491Target Specialty Products 2,809.49 Parks, Pest Control/AG spray 6/6/2019

Total 304912,809.49 

30537Target Specialty Products 2,377.26 Lake - Ag Control Spraying 6/13/2019

Total 305372,377.26 

30489Todd Stevens 15.00 Hunter Safety class refund 6/6/2019

Total 3048915.00 

30600Tom Vinci 1,576.75 Sum Spect. Stage & Sound 
(Deposit)

6/20/2019

Total 306001,576.75 

30601Tom Vinci 1,576.50 Sum Spect. Stage & Sound 
(Final Pymt)

6/20/2019

Total 306011,576.50 

30538TPX Communications 890.37 CSD Phones/Internet June 
2019

6/13/2019

Total 30538890.37 

30595Ultra Truck Works, Inc. 7,521.62 New FD truck accessories 6/20/2019

Total 305957,521.62 

30596Ultra Truck Works, Inc. 7,521.62 New FD truck #2 accessories 6/20/2019

Total 305967,521.62 

Item #4

15



Cameron Park Community Services District

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 5/31/2019 Through 6/26/2019

Vendor Name Check Amount Description Check Number Check  Date

Maint FeeUmpqua Bank 221.85 Bank Maintenance Fee for 
May 2019

6/20/2019

Total Maint Fee221.85 

Merch FeesUmpqua Bank 2,063.87 CC Merch Fees - Vantiv - May 
2019

6/11/2019

Total Merch Fees2,063.87 

30492Uptown Studios, Inc 350.00 Web Maint. May 2019 6/6/2019

Total 30492350.00 

30540Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 6,180.00 Prof. Srvcs CPA - May 2019 6/13/2019

Total 305406,180.00 

30597Verizon Business 5.09 FD Carrier Access - Phones 
May 2019

6/20/2019

Total 305975.09 

30598Verizon Wireless 555.99 Wireless Phones CC, Rec & 
Parks 05/11-06/10/19

6/20/2019

Total 30598555.99 

30599Verizon Wireless 201.40 Parks Wireless Ipads/Hotspots 
05/11-06/10/19

6/20/2019

Total 30599201.40 

30493Walker's Office Supplies, Inc. 176.91 Copy Paper CC 5 cases 6/6/2019

Total 30493176.91 

30495Wex Bank 71.83 Carmel Fuel FD Eng 05/01/19 6/6/2019

Total 3049571.83 

30587Winston Errol Pingrey 720.00 Sum Spect. Cash Security (2) 6/20/2019

Total 30587720.00 

Report Total 1,153,228.52 

Item #4

16


	0. 7.2.19 BA Comm Agenda
	0a. 6.4.19 BA Comm Conformed Agenda
	1a. CPCSD Mgmt Rpt 6.30.17
	1b. CPCSD BFS Audit Rpt 6.30.17
	1c. CPCSD Mgmt Rpt 6.30.18
	1d. CPCSD BFS Audit Rpt 6.30.18
	2. Park Impact Fee Nexus Study staff report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	2a. Cameron Park CSD Park IFNS 2019
	3. Director-Employee Reimbursement report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	3a. Board Member Reimbursement Report 6-26-19
	FY 18-19

	3b. Employee Reimbursement 6-26-19
	Sheet1

	04. Check Register  05-31-19 to 06-26-19



